
 
Telephone Enquiries: Michael Cunliffe, 01254 380109 
Email: michael.cunliffe@hyndburnbc.gov.uk   
Published: Tuesday 30th October 2018 

Page 1 of 1  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Cabinet Committee 
(Street Naming) 
 
Wednesday, 7th November, 2018 at 4.30 pm, 
QE Room, Scaitcliffe House, Ormerod Street, Accrington 
 
Membership 
 
Chair: Councillor Clare Cleary 
 
Councillors Judith Addison, Munsif Dad and Gareth Molineux  
 

 

A G E N D A 
 

1   Apologies for absence, Substitutions, Declarations of Interest and Dispensations   
 

2   Minutes of the Last Meeting  (Pages 3 - 4) 
 

To submit the minutes of the Cabinet Committee (Street Naming) meeting held on 
the 18th June 2018 for approval as a correct record. 

 
Recommended - That the minutes be received and approved as a 

correct record. 
 

3   Street Naming Proposal - Rhoden Road, Oswaldtwistle  (Pages 5 - 12) 
 
To seek approval for the naming of the following Street for a new-build residential 
development located off Rhoden Road, Oswaldtwistle. 
 
Recommended -That the street be named as set out in the report.   
 

 

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 
CABINET COMMITTEE- STREET NAMING 

 

 
Monday, 18th June, 2018 

 
Present:  
 

Councillor Clare Cleary (in the Chair),  
Councillors Judith Addison (Observer only), Munsif Dad and  
Gareth Molineux. 

  

 
Apologies for Absence, Substitutions, Declarations of Interest and Dispensations 
 
There were no apologies for absence, declarations of interest or dispensations.  
 
Terms of Reference 
 
The terms of reference for the Cabinet Committee- Street Naming were submitted for 
information. 
 
Resolved - That the Terms of Reference be noted. 
 
 
Street Naming Proposal - Frontier Park, M65, Junction 6, Whitebirk Roundabout, 
Whitebirk Drive, Rishton 
 
The Chief Planning and Transportation Officer submitted a report to seek approval for the 
naming of a Street and Business Park at Frontier Park, M65, Junction 6, Whitebirk 
Roundabout, Whitebirk Drive, Rishton. 
 
Resolved - That the street (Frontier Avenue) and business park (Frontier  

Park) be named as per the Officer’s recommendation in the  
report.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Signed:…………………………………………… 
 

Date: …………….………………………………………… 
 

Chair of the meeting 
At which the minutes were confirmed 

 

Page 3

Agenda Item 2



This page is intentionally left blank



REPORT TO: 

 

Street Naming Committee 

DATE: 

 

07 November 2018 

PORTFOLIO: 

 

Cllr Miles Parkinson, Leader 

REPORT AUTHOR: 

 

Chief Planning and Transportation Officer 

TITLE OF REPORT: Street Naming Proposal 

Rhoden Road, Oswaldtwistle 

 

1. Purpose of Report 

 

To seek approval for the naming of the following Street for a new-build residential development 

located off Rhoden Road, Oswaldtwistle. 

 

i. BREAR VALE  (street name) 

 

2. Recommendations  

 

2.1 That the street be named as set out above.   

 

3. Description of Development  

 

3.1 Residential development of 24 dwellings with one main street accessing the development. 

3.2 A plan illustrating the site location and development site plan is included at Appendix 1.   

 

4. Reasons for Recommendations  

 

4.1 The development is located off Rhoden Road, Oswaldtwistle.  

 

 The landowners wish to name the street Brear Vale to keep an association with the family 

name. 

 

4.2 The name proposed is connected to the history of the location of the development site.   

 

4.3 The name recommended above has been validated to ensure that the name complies with the 

Council’s Street Naming and Numbering Policy.   

 

 

5. Consultations 

5.1 The developer proposed the street name St David’s Way 10/9/2018.  The Council put this 
name suggestion through the initial validation checks for the new road name “St David’s Way” and the 
developer was informed that this name suggestion would be refused as in accordance with our Street 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



Naming and Numbering Policy.  The reason was that there is already a road named in Accrington 
Blackburn called “St Davids Wood” and there were another 3 streets using the word” David” in 
neighbouring local authority boundaries Blackburn and Burnley and this is classed as a duplication. 

The council check street name suggestions against the neighbouring local authority areas as part of 
the validation.  Street name suffixes should where ever possible reflect the physical characterises of 
the street and be chosen from our approved street name suffix list (attached).  

5.2 Members in the Oswaldtwistle ward where the development is located were then consulted 
(20/9/2018) on the new street name suggestion. 
Email received 20/09/2018 from Councillor Judith Addison explaining a meeting should be held with 
the landowner of the development, officers in Planning and Councillors Judith Addison and Councillor 
Sara Britcliffe.  The meeting was held 26/9/2018 with discussions about possible alternative street 
name suggestions, Yatesfield Close, Yatesfield Mews, Yates, Close, Lantern Close (relative to item 
Town Bent Colliery), Lampfield Close, (Town Bent Colliery).  The landowners family members 
discussed their wish to link the land to the family name and suggested Brear Vale, Yates Gardens, 
Yates Grove, Yates Vale.  The family members left the meeting to have time to consider the street 
name they would wish to put forward for consideration.  28/9/2018 the family came back to the officer 
with the chosen choice of BREAR VALE.  The officer informed the family member that the name would 
go through the checking process and go out to consultation with the emergency services. 
 
3/10/2018 All emergency services and Royal Mail were consulted. 
10/10/2018  There were no responses received from any of the emergency services. 
 

6. Implications  

 

Financial implications (including any 

future financial commitments for the 

Council) 

None 

Legal and human rights implications None 

Assessment of risk 

 

None 

Equality and diversity implications 

A Customer First Analysis should be 

completed in relation to policy decisions 

and should be attached as an appendix 

to the report.  

 

None 

7. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985: 

List of Background Papers  

 

7.1 The Council’s Street Naming and Numbering Policy sets out the following criteria for the 

naming of streets: 

 

 General Naming Convention 

 No street name should start with “The”; 

 Street names cannot be duplicated within District; 

 Street names should not be difficult to pronounce or awkward to spell; 

Page 6

http://hyntranet/index.php?option=com_remository&Itemid=80&func=startdown&id=1407


 Names of living persons will not be allowed; 

 The street names should, where possible, reflect the history or geography of the site or 

area; 

 Street names that could be construed as advertising will not be allowed; 

 Street names that could be considered offensive will not be allowed; 

 Subsidiary names (i.e. a row of buildings within an already named road being called 

Terrace) should not be used; 

 

All pedestrian ways should have the following suffixes: 

•  Walk 

•  Path 

•  Way 

 

Suffix Applicable Road Type 

Avenue  Any road 

Chase  Cul-de-sac 

Close  Cul-de-sac 

Court  Cul-de-sac 

Crescent  Crescent shaped road 

Drive  Residential road 

Gardens  Any road, provided there is no confusion with any local open space 

Green  A courtyard, provided there is no confusion with any local open space 

Grove  Small road or cul-de-sac 

Hill  For hill roads only 

Lane  Any road 

Mews  Cul-de-sac 

Place  Any road  

Rise  Sloping hill/industrial  

Road  Any road  

Row  Only acceptable in appropriate circumstances 

Street  Any road 

Square  For a square only 

Terrace  A terrace of houses but NOT as a subsidiary name within another road 

Way  Any – except cul-de-sacs 

 

7.2 The full version of the Council’s Street Naming and Numbering Policy is available on the 

Council’s website Hyndburn Street Naming and Numbering Policy 2017 – Hyndburn Borough 

Council 

 

 The Hyndburn Street Name suffix factsheet is also available on the Council’s website 

 Hyndburn Street name suffix Factsheet – Hyndburn Borough Council 

 

7.3 Street naming should also be undertaken in accordance with the Geoplace data entry 

convention document in line with the Service Level Agreement the Council has with Geoplace.   

Page 7

https://www.hyndburnbc.gov.uk/download-package/hyndburn-street-naming-and-numbering-policy-2017/
https://www.hyndburnbc.gov.uk/download-package/hyndburn-street-naming-and-numbering-policy-2017/
https://www.hyndburnbc.gov.uk/download-package/hyndburn-street-name-suffix-factsheet/


This page is intentionally left blank



P
age 9



P
age 10



1 

 

 

Factsheet 

  

Street name suffix 

Where new roads are to be constructed, developers will need to suggest suitable names for adoption 
by the Highway Authority. Names are often given in a two-part form: an individual name to reflect the 
history or geography of the site and an indicator of the type of street, known as the suffix. 
 
New street names will be allocated a relevant suffix from the list below: 
 

Alley usually refers to a rear service road used as access to garages or gardens. 

Approach usually refers to a path or road that leads to a place. 

Arcade usually has shops along it. 

Arch usually refers to a curving street, often in the shape of an arch, used similar to crescent. 

Avenue can refer to a small residential street or a major roadway, usually indicates a wide 

straight road, often tree-lined, that is of major importance. 

Bank is usually used for streets that have an edge, embankment or verge. 

Brook is usually used for residential streets that run near to a brook, river or stream. 

Brow is a street on the top of a hill or ridge. 

Chase is usually used for small residential streets in a valley or for streets built on hunting land. 

Close is used for any dead-end street or no through road. 

Court often used for streets that form a square or rectangle, similar to the use of Square. 

Crescent is usually a short curved street. 

Croft is usually a short street built on a very small farm. 

Dale usually refers to a street built in a valley or basin. 

Drive is a very common suffix commonly used in suburban areas both for residential streets and major 

roadways. 

Field is usually used for residential streets that run through fields or grassland. 

Fold is usually used for a street in a small valley in a hilly area. 

Gardens is usually used to designate a street populated by garden homes. 

Green is usually a small residential street, often with a park-like setting. 

Grove is usually a small residential street, usually surrounded by woods. 

Heights usually refers to a short residential street that travels uphill, or is on top of high ground 

compared to neighbouring streets. 

Hill usually refers to a street that travels upon a hill. 

Lane is commonly used for narrow roads, especially in the countryside. 

Lea is usually used for residential streets that run through fields, similar to the use of Field. 

 

Page 11



2 

 

 

Meadow is usually used for residential streets that run through fields, similar to the use of Field. 

Mews is usually a small residential street lined with small houses. 

Mount is usually a street on the top of a hill or ridge. 

Nook is usually a small street in a corner or recess. 

Parade a name for a road running by the seafront or a road with shops along it. 

Pasture is usually used for residential streets that run through fields, similar to the use of Field. 

Park refers to residential streets that contain or run through playing fields, recreational areas or 

country gardens or parks. 

Place is usually a small residential street or a narrow street in a commercial district. 

Plaza often refers to either a pedestrian-only street or a suburban shopping area's internal ways. 

Rise usually refers to a street that travels upon a hill, similar to the use of Hill. 

Road is a very common suffix used to describe a way that leads from one place to another in both 

residential and commercial areas but is used extensively for other types of streets. 

Row usually refers to streets with townhouses, but is also commonly used for any 

residential street. 

Square is often used for streets that form a square or rectangle, often with a park or a large square at 

their centre, used for markets, gatherings, etc. 

Street is a very common suffix for a road in a town or city with houses or other buildings along it, can 

be small residential, intermediate and major arterial roadways. 

Terrace historically was a small residential street that was elevated above the surroundings, for 

example, on a hillside, but is now used in a more generic way to describe a residential street. 

Vale usually refers to a street built in a valley or basin. similar to the use of Dale. 

View is usually used for streets that have vista or panoramic outlook. 

Walk usually designates a pedestrian-only space. 

Way: wide range of use, from an alley-like definition to a residential street to a major roadway in new 

developments, used to describe a way that leads from one place to another. 

Wood or Woods usually refers to short residential streets that are surrounded by trees, similar to the 

use of Grove. 

 

How to contact us: 
Planning and Transportation Department  
Engineering Team, Local Land and Property Gazetteer Custodian  
Scaitcliffe House, Ormerod Street, ACCRINGTON BB5 0PF  
Tel: 01254 380175 Fax: 01254 391625  
E-Mail: Jane.simister@hyndburnbc.gov.uk  
Website: www.hyndburnbc.gov. 
 

Page 12


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the Last Meeting
	3 Street Naming Proposal - Rhoden Road, Oswaldtwistle
	Land Plan parcel Rhoden Road Oswaldtwistle
	Hyndburn Street Name suffix factsheet


